
 
NOTICE 

 
OF 

 
MEETING 

 

BERKSHIRE PENSION BOARD 
 

will meet on 

 
THURSDAY, 27TH MAY, 2021 

 
At 11.00 am 

 
by 
 

VIRTUAL MEETING - ONLINE ACCESS,  ON RBWM YOUTUBE  

 
 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE BERKSHIRE PENSION BOARD 
 
ALAN CROSS (CHAIRMAN), NIKKI CRAIG, JEFF FORD, ARTHUR PARKER AND TONY 
PETTITT  

 
 

 
 

Karen Shepherd – Head of Governance - Issued: May 19th 2021 
 
Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Andy Carswell 01628 796319 

 
 

Recording of Meetings – In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the Part I (public) section of the virtual 

meeting will be streamed live and recorded via Zoom. By participating in the meeting by audio and/or video, you are 
giving consent to being recorded and acknowledge that the recording will be in the public domain. If you have any 

questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead/videos
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO 
 

1.   INTRODUCTION AND APOLOGIES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence.  

  

- 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of interest.  

  

3 - 4 
 

3.   MINUTES 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on March 4th 2021. 

  

5 - 10 
 

4.   SCHEME AND REGULATORY UPDATE 
 
To receive a verbal update on the following: 

a. Exit reforms 
b. TPR Code of Practice 
c. Written Ministerial Statement dated 13th May 2021 on McCloud and 

the LGPS 

  

11 - 16 
 

5.   PART I COMMITTEE PAPERS FOR 14 JUNE 2021 
 
To review and comment upon various draft papers ahead of final versions 
being presented to the Pension Committee. 

  

- 
 

6.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
To discuss any other items of business. 

  

- 
 

 
 
 



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 
 
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 
 
DPIs include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 
which has not been fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.   
 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.  
 
If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting. 
 
If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  
 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



BERKSHIRE PENSION BOARD 
 

THURSDAY, 4 MARCH 2021 
 
PRESENT: Nikki Craig, Alan Cross (Chairman), Jeff Ford, Arthur Parker (Vice-
Chairman) and Tony Pettitt 

 
Also in attendance: Ian Coleman 
 
Officers: Philip Boyton, Andy Carswell and Kevin Taylor 
 
 
INTRODUCTION AND APOLOGIES  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 

 
DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 
Nikki Craig declared an interest as Head of HR for RBWM, as the administering authority. 

 
MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on November 20th 
2020 be approved as an accurate record. 

 
ACTION TRACKER  
 
Tony Pettitt stated he had attended the LGA pension seminar in January, and Nikki Craig 
stated she and Jeff Ford had both attended the Barnett Waddingham spring seminar. All of 
these had been recorded. Kevin Taylor told members it would be useful to supply copies of 
any certificates of training attendance they received, as this would help with the recording 
process. 

 
SCHEME AND REGULATORY UPDATE  
 
Kevin Taylor informed members he had circulated a draft paper earlier in the day, that he 
would present at the next Committee meeting, regarding the issue relating to the £95,000 exit 
cap. He said the Treasury had issued the revocation regulations at the end of the previous 
week; prior to that, guidance to employers and scheme members relating to the disapplication 
of the exit cap had also been issued. The revocation meant the Berkshire Pension Fund would 
be able to continue to pay benefits to scheme members aged 55 and over who had  been 
made redundant or  retired for reasons of business efficiency, while expecting the employer to 
pay the full strain cost. Members were told the policy whereby scheme members could either 
reduce or defer pension payments, which had been approved by the Committee in December, 
was now void as a result of the Treasury implementing the revocation regulations. 
 
Kevin Taylor said there had only been one scheme member where action had started to be 
taken, although it was possible there may be a few more affected. Philip Boyton told members 
that all cases relating to retirement had been immediately reviewed. 
 
Members thanked Kevin Taylor for his work on the new paper and expressed frustration that a 
lot of work had gone into implementing changes only for them to be revoked. It was noted that 
the use of the word ‘unjustified’ used in the paper came from government and did not 
represent the view of the Board as it could be thought to be politically motivated. 

 

5

Agenda Item 3



DRAFT ADMINISTRATION REPORT  
 
The Board was advised that the latest report covered the quarter period from 1 October to 31 
December 2020 and was due to be presented to the next Pension Committee meeting. 
 
Alan Cross asked if there was an issue with academies’ use of iConnect, noting there was a 
compliance rate of only around 70 per cent when there was a desire for this to be 100 per 
cent. Philip Boyton said many academies outsourced their payroll service, and there was a 
great variation in the providers that were used. Discussions were continuing with the 
academies and payroll providers to ensure compliance with meeting timescales was met. The 
Board was reminded of the benefits of using iConnect, chiefly that data quality was improved 
and information could be disseminated in a more timely manner. 
 
Alan Cross queried the delayed submissions onto iConnect from Reading and RBWM shown 
on page 5 of the report and asked if this had been resolved. It was noted that late payments 
were generally one or two days past the deadline and although it did not have an overall effect 
on the Pension Fund, it could impact on the quality of information available to the actuary. It 
was agreed that discussions should take place outside of the meeting to understand the root 
cause of the issue. Despite the delays, the Pension Fund was still meeting its key 
performance indicators as there was evidence to prove this. 
 
Tony Pettitt said chart 5 needed to be amended to clarify if this related to the number of 
sessions that had been run, or the number of attendees and mode of delivery. Philip Boyton 
said two sessions had been run remotely, and these had been popular. There had been a 
pause in the ability to run sessions due to Covid. However, it was now possible for surgeries 
to be run remotely over a number of days, rather than having them restricted. 
 
Jeff Ford asked if the report covered the topic of complaints within its remit. Kevin Taylor said 
the report used to contain a section on comments and complaints. Although the number of 
submitted comments and complaints was low, it was agreed that it should be reintroduced to 
the report, if only to state the number of complaints or comments that had been received. The 
Annual Report contained information on complaints, either submitted by scheme members or 
through the Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP). 

 
OPERATIONAL MATTERS RELATED TO GOVERNANCE REVIEW  
 
Alan Cross introduced the item and explained the paper set out a proposed future model of 
operation for the Board, which would provide greater flexibility. It was suggested there could 
be six or eight members, although it was recognised if the size of the Board membership was 
increased to eight and there ended up being vacancies then this could create problems with 
meetings being quorate. One suggestion was to have substitute members, who would have 
the same level of training as full-time Board members. 
 
Jeff Ford said he supported the proposals but expressed some concern that it could be a 
lengthy process to train some potential new members if they were not familiar with pensions 
on a day-to-day basis. He also said it may be difficult to recruit new members. Alan Cross said 
having substitute members would enable them to step up as a ready-made replacement when 
a Board member left, which would cause less concern about filling a vacancy on the Board 
itself. 
 
Members agreed with the Chairman’s recommendation in the report and this would be taken 
forward (for information) to the Pension Fund Committee. 

 
EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT  
 

6



Members were advised that the report had been considered and approved at the Audit and 
Governance Panel on 16 February 2021. It set out the main findings and general observations 
taken from the 2019/20 audit. 
 
Members queried the overnight loan where £1.2million was borrowed by RBWM from the 
Pension Fund, as it appeared that it had not been properly disclosed. Kevin Taylor stated this 
was being investigated by the Head of Finance and was still currently under review. It was 
hoped that a formal response could be given at the next Pension Committee meeting. Kevin 
Taylor confirmed the transaction did not put the Pension Fund at any risk and the monies were 
repaid, with some interest, the following day. Tony Pettitt said the main issue appeared to be 
there was no control mechanism in place to authorise the transaction at a senior level. He 
asked if members could be updated on whatever recommendations were agreed to be put in 
place. 
 
Regarding the concerns raised over the administration system editing rights, Kevin Taylor said 
finding a resolution was an ongoing situation. An audit meeting had been held earlier in the 
day. Kevin Taylor stated his belief that assigning a third ‘super user’ would create further risks 
to the Fund. Nikki Craig said a similar situation was in place with the RBWM payroll, and 
safety checks were carried out on an intermittent basis. Philip Boyton said all transactions on 
the system were fully auditable and were time and date stamped. 
 
Alan Cross advised that the overall structure of the Pension Fund was being considered, and 
this would be included in the final report. 
 
It was noted that the report stated there had been no internal audit undertaken during the 
period under review. Kevin Taylor said this was because in the year before the administration 
and payroll service had been audited and given the highest level of audit, so there was no 
perceived risk prior to the external audit requesting an independent governance review. A 
review of the Pension Fund had been due but not proceeded with following the advice given. 

 
PENSION COMMITTEE PAPERS FOR MARCH 22 2021  
 
Members were told that the draft papers had been circulated offline, prior to them being 
formally published in the agenda papers for the Pension Committee meeting. Alan Cross 
commented that this was a new way of working and should it cause an issue for online 
observers of the meeting they should advise Kevin Taylor. 
 
Pension Fund Governance Progress Report 
 
Kevin Taylor told members that this would be a standing item outlining the progress being 
made on the governance review. Changes had been made to the Constitution to reflect the 
governance requirements of  the Pension Committee, Advisory Panel and Board. Ian Coleman 
highlighted the fact that revision of the Investment Strategy Statement did not need to be 
completed until spring 2022, although it was hoped this could be done before then and a 
paper brought forward in the nearer future. A possible revision of the Strategic Asset 
Allocation had been mooted and it was possible the LPPI would look at this and report to the 
Pension Committee. However, Ian Coleman added that if this was not required, it would be 
possible to move swiftly forward with the ISS review. A recommendation on the next course of 
action would be made at the next Committee meeting on 22 March 2021. Ian Coleman said 
the Committee would need to decide if they wanted a strategic review of the SAA, although 
this was dependent on the recommendations of LPPI.  
 
Regarding the external audit report, Ian Coleman said he was not optimistic this would be 
ready in time for consideration at Committee as work needed to be done on a number of 
areas. However, he did not anticipate wholesale changes from the draft report. 
 
Draft Responsible Investment Policy 
 

7



Ian Coleman said all Pension Funds were expected to have an up to date responsible 
investment policy and the Berkshire policy had not been reviewed for some time. The draft 
policy had been put together following discussions with LPPI, who would deliver the policy on 
behalf of the Berkshire Fund. An extensive re-write of the climate change section of the report 
was anticipated as a consultation paper on climate change, and its effect on the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, was due to be published by the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government later in the month. 
 
Local Investment Report 
 
Ian Coleman said a number of Funds had set aside funding for investment into local assets 
both generally and due to the problems associated with Covid. It was being viewed as a 
solution to helping grow local economies. The Board was told that the chairman of the 
Pension Committee had wanted a report on this topic to see if increased local investment was 
something elected Members wanted to pursue. Any execution of investment locally would 
involve LPPI. Ian Coleman said he had made a presentation on the subject to members of the 
Berkshire Unitary Treasurers, who had been supportive of the proposals. Alan Cross 
suggested the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) could be a useful source of information on 
investment opportunities, if Committee were to approve this and LPPI should have a 
discussion with  the LEP.  
 
Jeff Ford suggested there was a possible political angle to local investment. He gave the 
example of a Pension Fund helping to fund a redevelopment of a shopping centre as an 
investment opportunity that could be construed as a political issue. Alan Cross said LPPI 
would need to intervene in such a scenario andconsider whether or not the proposed local 
investments met the return requirements. Ian Coleman said LPPI had established local funds 
for London and Lancashire and the same team would be involved in a Berkshire fund were it 
to be established. The team would likely to be based in London, although he added the 
Lancashire arm of the operation did have some staff operating from Preston. 
 
Voting and Engagement Policy 
 
Ian Coleman advised that voting and engagement would be carried out on the Fund’s behalf 
by the LPPI. He had had it confirmed that the LPPI policy would apply to all investments 
owned by the Berkshire Pension Fund. However, it would be possible for Berkshire to 
apportion a share of any vote if their view on a particular issue differed from those in the 
partner organisations in London and Lancashire, if it was made known there was a difference 
in opinion. 
 
Pension Fund Business Plan 2021/22 
 
Members were told this was an updated business plan, which included what actions from the 
previous year’s business plan had been undertaken. 
 
Regarding the appointment of a Head of Pension Fund, Kevin Taylor advised that this had not 
yet gone out to advertisement. It was hoped this could be done as soon as possible and was 
awaiting final sign-off from the Head of Finance. Alan Cross noted a fixed timescale was in 
place for a review of the pension team structure and stated his opinion it would make more 
sense to do this once the new Head of Pension Fund had been identified as they may have a 
different view as to how the team should potentially be restructured. Members were in 
agreement that the timescales suggested in the report ought to be changed so they were 
conditional to the appointment of the new Head of Pension Fund. 
 
Responding to a question from Jeff Ford regarding iConnect usage, Philip Boyton stated that 
86 per cent of scheme member data is currently received from employers or their third party 
payroll provider on a monthly basis  through iConnect. He said there was no intention to 
impose the system on employers with ten or fewer scheme members and some onboarding of 
employers may be hampered by the payroll system they use. It was therefore suggested by 

8



Tony Pettitt that the report should be amended to state the aim was to have 100 per cent of 
scheme employers administering their services using iConnect by 31 March 2022 where 
viable. 
 
Alan Cross stated that because of Covid, some investment values may be below the levels 
expected at this time by the actuary (in the 2019 review) and this would impact on the level of 
funding at the next actuarialreview. He suggested more work needed to be done to resolve 
this as far as possible. Ian Coleman said he expected funding to still be significantly below 100 
per cent funding. Following the next actuary review a report would be produced that would 
outline the options available and the associated risks and it would be for the Fund to balance 
the levels of risk against investment. This would be considered at the same time as the plans 
for the Strategic Asset Allocation. The risks would be identified jointly by LPPI and the actuary. 
Regarding whether the targets would be the same as those identified in the actuarial review, 
this would be confirmed in time for the Pension Committee meeting. Ian Coleman said he 
could see no reason why the issue relating to risk could not be discussed at the next Board 
meeting. 
 
Regarding the objectives listed in sections 3 and 4 of the paper, Nikki Craig stated RBWM had 
updated their policy on this recently and an interim strategy had been signed the previous 
year. It was agreed the most up to date version should be included in the report. 
 
It was agreed some of the dates listed in the report would be amended as there were some 
inaccuracies. 
 
Jeff Ford asked if Pension Administration Standards Association (PASA) accreditation was still 
an objective. Philip Boyton said it was still an ambition, but due to legislative changes in the 
pension industry PASA is currently less of a priority, with the need to redirect resources on to 
other projects. 

 
PENSION COMMITTEE WORKPLAN  
 
Members were told that the Board’s workplan was to align itself with the workplan for the 
Pension Committee, and for the Board to review the Committee’s papers in advance. It was 
agreed this was a sensible resolution. 

 
ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Alan Cross said a scheme employer newsletter had recently been published, which included 
details of vacancies on the Board to be filled. This followed on from the earlier item on the 
governance review. It was hoped to involve someone from the education sector and a couple 
of academy employees had expressed an interest. Discussions would take place to see if an 
agreement could be reached. The governance review had also suggested a member from a 
Trade Union could join, although this option had not yet been explored. A Trade Union 
member would be expected to be a full member and undertake the required training. 
 
Jeff Ford said the Barnett Waddingham session he had attended had identified an increase in 
the number of solicitors’ enquiries to pension funds regarding potential transfers of pensions 
and why a fund would allow a transfer to occur. He asked if such a thing had happened with 
the Berkshire Pension Fund. Philip Boyton said there had been some requests of this nature 
from claims companies acting with the authority of the former scheme member, using 
Freedom of Information or Subject Access Requests. He said there was a process that each 
Local Government Pension Fund had to go through to assure itself that any transfer a member 
was making away from the defined benefit scheme was done in their best interests. The 
Pension Fund has, in response to each request, been able to demonstrate that nothing 
untoward had happened regarding any transfer from the Berkshire Pension Fund. Philip 
Boyton explained that the actual number of transfers paid by the Pension Fund to either 
Personal or Overseas scheme administrators is small in comparison to the number of 

9



requests received in the first instance for scheme member information, that includes a request 
for an estimated Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) quotation. 

 
 
The meeting, which began at 11.00 am, finished at 12.57 pm 
 

CHAIRMAN………………………………. 
 

DATE……………………………….......... 
 

10



Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
LGF Reform and Pensions Division 
NE Quarter, 2nd Floor 

       LGPensions@communities.gov.uk 

Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 

 

 
 
FAO: Chief Financial Officers of councils & combined 
authorities in England 
 
CC: Local authority representatives of the Central & Local 
Government Information Partnership – Finance group  
  

 
           
 
                        
 

 
 
 
 
 

09 April 2021 
 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
i) Notification of a new requirement for exit payments data 
ii) Extension to deadline of Revenue Outturn and Capital Outturn returns 
 
Summary 
Ministers have confirmed a new requirement for data on exit payments. The draft 
specification is shown in the table below. All redundancy payments, pension fund 
strain costs and other special payments made in consequence of termination of 
employment or loss of office (but excluding payments on death or ill-health 
retirement) are to be included. This data will be put into the public domain. 
 
This will require data to be provided for 2014-15 to 2020-21 by the end of May. It is 
expected that a similar data request will be required for subsequent years. 
 
We invite comments on the clarity of the data requirements and the practicality of 
providing this. These will inform the New Burdens assessment. Comments should 
preferably be made via this Online Form, and by Monday 26th April.   
 
 
Purpose of collecting this data 
This data is urgently needed to inform delivery of a key Government objective – to 
end excessively high exit payments in the public sector. You may be aware that 
legislation was made last year to control exits across the public sector - the 
Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020. Those regulations 
were revoked in February as it became clear that there was a risk that it may have 
unintended consequences which it would be out of line with the Government’s 
original policy intent. 
 

11

Agenda Item 4

https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=EGg0v32c3kOociSi7zmVqOFUltc6bxdOvQewjL5juFBURUk3UEQ0RU1DRzE0RDQwMkw3Q0tSUlIyNS4u


Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
LGF Reform and Pensions Division 
NE Quarter, 2nd Floor 

       LGPensions@communities.gov.uk 

Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 

To deliver Government’s renewed commitment to meet this policy objective fairly and 
effectively we need to have better data on the number and level of exit payments 
made in local government. The commitment was first made in the Government’s 
2015 election manifesto and Ministers believe that progress on this is well overdue.  
 
Many authorities will already be collecting and publishing this data under the 
requirements of the Transparency Code. However, the data published under the 
Code is not always comparable and not easily available for all authorities. The 
content and purpose of the Code is being reviewed later in the year and the 
requirements in relation to exit payments will be considered as part of that. 
 
 
Next Steps 
We expect to write to you again early in May, once the specification for the return 
has been finalised. At that stage, we plan to provide instructions of how to register 
yourself or the relevant member of your staff to make the return. 
 
 
Extended deadlines for Revenue Outturn (RO) and Capital (final) Outturn (COR) 
returns 
Following the decision to extend the deadlines for the production of statutory 
accounts again for 2020-21 and 2021-22, we have consulted key users of the RO 
and COR data about extending these deadlines. Whereas the deadlines for the RO 
and COR  2020-21 returns were set in the annual timetable to 26th June, the 
deadlines will now be 27th August. 

 
 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
 

 

 
Abigail Shaw 

Head of local government 
finance data collections 

 

 
Teresa Clay 

Head of Pensions, 
Local Government Finance and Stewardship 

 

 
 

 
 
  

12



 

 

 
Annex – Proposed specification of new data requirement 
 

 
 

* Senior employees as defined in paragraphs 2 and 3 of Schedule 1 to the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011. https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/made  
** A strain cost paid to pension scheme (under LGPS Reg 68(2) which results from a LGPS member's retirement benefits becoming immediately payable without reduction under under Regulatiopn 30(7) or under 
Regulation 30(5) where the employer has waived the reduction under Regulation 30(8). https://www.lgpsregs.org/schemeregs/lgpsregs2013/timeline.php#r30 
*** Payments made using the powers granted by Regulations 5 or 6 of the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006 to increase the 
statutory benefits payable on redundancy. https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/2914/contents/made 
**** Please include any payments not included above which are paid in consequence of termination of employment or loss of office: such as ex gratia payments, any payment pursuant to an award of compensation 
under the ACAS arbitration scheme or a settlement or conciliation agreement. Please do not include payments made on death in service or in respect of incapacity as a result of accident, injury or illness. 

 
 

13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Local Government Pensions 

Statement made on 13 May 2021 

Statement UIN HCWS26  

Statement made by 

 

Luke Hall  

Minister of State for Regional Growth and Local Government  

Conservative  

Thornbury and Yate 

Commons  

 

Statement 

The Government is committed to public service pensions which are fair to public sector 

workers. In 2014, reforms were made to the Local Government Pension Scheme in England 

and Wales (the LGPS) to make the scheme more sustainable and affordable for the longer 

term. These reforms followed the prior recommendations of the Independent Public Service 

Pensions Commission and were part of similar reforms made across the public sector. The 

Government believes the 2014 changes to the LGPS balanced the interests of local 

government workers, employers and taxpayers fairly, and it remains the right package of 

benefits for the sector. 

In July 2020, MHCLG consulted on changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme in 

England and Wales (LGPS). That consultation outlined proposals to amend LGPS 

‘transitional protections’ following a December 2018 Court of Appeal finding that similar 

provisions in the judicial and firefighters’ pension schemes gave rise to unlawful 

discrimination. Transitional protections had been introduced by the Government to exempt 

scheme members nearest to retirement from the impact of the reforms made to public service 

pensions in 2014 and 2015. 

In the LGPS, transitional protection was provided through an ‘underpin’, providing protected 

members with the higher of their pension under the reformed, career average scheme and the 

pension they would have been entitled to under the previous final salary scheme. In our 

consultation, we proposed extending underpin protection to younger qualifying members. 

The Government received responses from a variety of stakeholders. These were detailed and 

varied, and the Government is grateful for the consideration and thought given to the issues 

covered in the consultation. Responses were largely supportive of the key elements of the 

proposals. 

After consideration of the responses, we can now confirm the key elements of the changes to 

scheme regulations which will be made in due course. The overarching aim is that the 

changes will address the findings of the Courts and provide protection to all qualifying 

members when their benefits are drawn from the scheme. The key points are: 

15

https://members.parliament.uk/member/4450/contact
https://members.parliament.uk/member/4450/contact
https://members.parliament.uk/member/4450/contact
https://members.parliament.uk/member/4450/contact
https://members.parliament.uk/member/4450/contact
https://members.parliament.uk/member/4450/contact


• Underpin protection will apply to LGPS members who meet the revised qualifying criteria, 

principally that they were active in the scheme on 31st March 2012 and subsequently had 

membership of the career average scheme without a continuous break in service of more 

than five years. 

• The period of protection will apply from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2022 but will cease 

earlier where a member leaves active membership or reaches their final salary scheme 

normal retirement age (normally 65) before 31st March 2022. 

• Where a member stays in active membership beyond 31st March 2022, the comparison of 

their benefits will be based on their final salary when they leave the LGPS, or when they 

reach their final salary scheme normal retirement age, if earlier. 

• Underpin protection will apply to qualifying members who leave active membership of the 

LGPS with an immediate or deferred entitlement to a pension. 

• A ‘two stage process’ will apply for assessing the underpin so that, where there is a gap 

between a member’s last day of active membership and the date they take their pension, 

members can be assured they are getting the higher benefit. 

• Scheme regulations giving effect to the above changes will be retrospective to 1st April 

2014. 

A full Government response, containing further detail on the matters addressed above, and on 

other issues which were covered in the consultation, will be published later this year. This 

will include the Government’s decision on whether members will be expected to meet the 

underpin qualifying criteria in a single period of scheme membership for the underpin to 

apply. 

It is anticipated that regulations giving effect to these changes will be made after new primary 

legislation in relation to public service pensions has completed its passage through Parliament 

and the Government’s intention is that regulations will come into force on 1st April 2023. 

Ensuring that future pension accrual for all LGPS members is on a career average basis from 

1st April 2022 will mean that local government workers continue to receive some of the best 

pension scheme benefits available in the UK, but that provision is more sustainable for the 

long term and more affordable for the taxpayer. 

 

Statement from 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government  

 

 

16


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Scheme and Regulatory Update
	Agenda item 4c - Written Ministerial Statement on McCloud and the LGPS dated 13 May 2021


